

Beaufort County Airports Board Meeting

Chairman

TREY AMBROSE

Vice Chairman

HOWARD ACKERMAN

Committee Members

ANNE ESPOSITO

LESLIE ADLAM FLORY

JAMES BUCKLEY

CHRIS BUTLER

MARK BAILEY

BRIAN TURRISI

IAN SCOTT

THOMAS SHEAHAN

NICHOLAS MESENBURG

Airports Director

JON REMBOLD

County Administrator

ERIC GREENWAY

Administrative Assistant

Administration Building

Beaufort County Government Hilton Head Island Airport 120 Beach City Road Hilton Head Is, SC 29926

Contact

Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228
(843) 255-2942
www.beaufortcountysc.gov

Beaufort County Airports Board Agenda

Thursday, April 21, 2022 at 1:30 PM
Hybrid Meeting
Council Chambers, Administration Building, 100 Ribaut Road,
Beaufort, SC

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. FOIA PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN
 PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
 SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT
- 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
- 5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES MARCH 17, 2021
- 6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limited to Three Minutes Each Person)
- 7. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
- 8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
- NEW BUSINESS

MEETING LINK:

Meeting number (access code): 160 408 0275

Passcode: airport

ACTION ITEMS

- 10. BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE AIRPORT (ARW) SCAC GRANT EMERGENCY GENERATOR (VOTE)
- 11. BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE AIRPORT (ARW) FLYING FROG 5K RACE (VOTE)
- 12. FINAL BUDGET APPROVAL (VOTE)

COMMITTEE REPORTS

13. CHAIRMAN UPDATE – CHAIR & VICE - CHAIRMAN ELECTION

CITIZEN COMMENTS

- 14. CITIZEN COMMENT (Every member of the public who is recognized to speak shall limit comments to three minutes)
- 15. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE MEETING

16. THE NEXT MEETING WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2022, 1:30 PM. FOR MORE INFO, PLEASE CLICK HERE.

MINUTES

Beaufort County Airports Board

March 17, 2022 | 1:30 pm | Meeting called to order by Chairman Trey Ackerman

In Attendance

Trey Ambrose, Chris Butler, Howard Ackerman, James Buckley, Leslie Adlam Flory, Anne Esposito, Nicholas Mesenburg, Thomas Sheahan, Brian Turrisi, and Mark Bailey.

Absent: Ian Scott.

County Staff: Jon Rembold, Airports Director; Stephen Parry, Assistant Airports Director; Paul Dolin, Beaufort Executive Airport Supervisor; Elena Milbrandt, Accounts Payable Specialist.

Public: David Ames - Town Council liaison to Airports Board; Judy Elder - Talbert, Bright and Ellington, Inc.

Approval of Agenda

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Ackerman and seconded by Ms. Esposito that the agenda be adopted. The <u>vote was FOR –</u> Trey Ambrose, Chris Butler, Howard Ackerman, Leslie Adlam Flory, James Buckley, Brian Turrisi, Nicholas Mesenburg, Thomas Sheahan, Anne Esposito, and Mark Bailey. The agenda was approved as distributed.

AGAINST - None. ABSENT - Ian Scott.

Approval of Minutes

Motion: Ms. Flory made a motion to approve the February minutes, and Mr. Buckley seconded that February 24, 2022, meeting minutes be approved. The <u>vote was FOR</u> – Trey Ambrose, Howard Ackerman, Chris Butler, Brian Turrisi, James Buckley, Leslie Adlam Flory, Thomas Sheahan, Nicholas Mesenburg, Anne Esposito, and Mark Bailey. The minutes were approved as distributed.

AGAINST - None. ABSENT - Ian Scott.

Public Comments

There were no public comments offered.

Director's Report - Beaufort County Airport Project Update

❖ FLYING FROG 5K RACE:

o Mr. Rembold briefed the board on the upcoming Beaufort Executive Airport 5k event, which will take place on October 22, 2022. Next month, a proposal for a beneficiary will be submitted to be approved by the board members. More details to follow soon.

Charts were previously submitted for AvGas, Jet A sales, and aircraft operations.

Director's Report – Hilton Head Island Airport Project Update

❖ AIRPORTS BOARD ELECTIONS:

o Mr. Rembold reminded the board members that the election would take place in April, and a new Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be elected. The board members will send out emails with information about their nominees.

❖ RECENT GRANT APPLICATIONS:

o Mr. Rembold briefed the board on several federal grant programs for which Beaufort County Airports will apply. These grants (Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, BIL, and Airport Improvement Program (AIP)) are to be used for terminal construction, Air Traffic Control towers, and General Aviation airport improvements.

❖ TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION SPEAKER:

o Mr. David McMahon, TSA Federal Security Director, briefed the TSA management structure for the State of South Carolina under his leadership. He reported staffing challenges and staff strategies and briefly presented the forthcoming security enhancements at the Hilton Head Island Airport. Highlights will include the installation of the CAT scanner (Credential Authentication Technology) in June 2022 and the replacement of the conventional X-Ray machine at the airport with a 3-D image CT scanner in December 2022.

❖ SOUTH CAROLINA AERONAUTICS COMMISSION:

 Ms. Anne Esposito briefed the board members on her responsibilities as a commissioner on South Carolina Aeronautics. For more information, please visit the following link: www.scaeronautics.sc.gov/commission.asp

Charts were previously submitted for AvGas, Jet A sales, Total Aircraft Operations, and Enplanements /Deplanements.

ì			c.					
ı	Ш	In	tır	۱ıck	ned	ΙKι	ICIN	200

N/A

New Business

1. MOTION TO APPROVE THE AIRPORTS BIPARTISAN INFRASTRUCTURE LAW (BIL) GRANT FUNDS

Mr. Chris Butler made a Motion to approve the Airports Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) Grant Funds to move to the Public Facilities Committee meeting on March 21, 2022. Ms. Leslie Adlam Flory made a second to the motion.

The <u>vote was FOR</u> – Trey Ambrose, Chris Butler, Howard Ackerman, Brian Turrisi, Nicholas Mesenburg, Anne Esposito, Thomas Sheahan, Leslie Adlam, Mark Bailey, and James Buckley.

AGAINST - None. ABSENT: Ian Scott.

The motion for approval passes.

2. <u>MOTION TO APPROVE THE BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE AIRPORT (ARW) FAA AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (AIP) GRANT APPLICATION</u>

Mr. Chris Butler made a Motion to approve the Beaufort Executive Airport (ARW) FAA Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant Application to move to the Public Facilities Committee meeting on March 21, 2022. Ms. Leslie Adlam Flory made a second to the motion.

The <u>vote was FOR</u> – Trey Ambrose, Chris Butler, Howard Ackerman, Brian Turissi, Nicholas Mesenburg, Anne Esposito, Thomas Sheahan, Leslie Adlam Flory, Mark Bailey, and James Buckley.

AGAINST - None. ABSENT: Ian Scott.

The motion for approval passes.

Chairman Update

1. Finance

Members: Howard Ackerman (Chair), Anne Esposito, Chris Butler, and Brian Turrisi.

• The Finance Committee has nothing new to report this month. They will keep the board informed of any developments.

2. Communications and Marketing

Members: Jim Buckley (Chair), Brian Turissi, and Leslie Adlam Flory.

◆ The Communications and Marketing Committee has nothing new to report this month. They will keep the board informed of any new developments.

3. Passenger Service Committee

Members: Anne Esposito (Chair), Leslie Adlam Flory

- ◆ Ms. Leslie Adlam Flory briefed the board members on the Airport Ambassador Program, which will begin this summer. The Passenger Service Committee is requesting volunteers to fill these positions.
- They will keep the board informed of any new developments.

4. ARW Facilities Use and Improvement

Members: Chris Butler (Chair), Mark Bailey, and Trey Ambrose

◆ The ARW Facilities Use and Improvement Committee have nothing new to report this month. They will keep the board informed of any new developments.

5. The Hilton Head Island Airport General Aviation Improvement Committee.

Members: Howard Ackerman and Brian Turrisi.

This Committee will focus on improvements on the General Aviation side of HXD only.

 Project Update: The Hilton Head Island General Aviation Improvement committee will inform you of any developments.

Public Comments

There were no public comments offered.

Next Meeting

April 21, 2022 | 1:30 pm | Hybrid Meeting | Council Chambers, Administration Building, 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort (www.beaufortcountysc.gov/events/2022/04/Airport%20Board%202022-04-21.html)

Adjournment

Motion to adjourn was made at 2:34 pm and was passed unanimously.



July 2, 2021

Mr. Stephen J. Parry Airport Deputy Director 39 Airport Circle Beaufort, South Carolina 29907

2553 Airport Boulevard West Columbia, SC 29170 (803) 896-6262 www.scaeronautics.com Re:

South Carolina Aeronautics Commission Project No. 21-010, Beaufort Executive Airport

Dear Mr. Parry,

Henry D. McMaster

James D. Stephens EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

I am pleased to inform you that the South Carolina Aeronautics Commission (SCAC) has approved your project application and awarded up to \$21,171 to the Beaufort Executive Airport to install an emergency generator and three connection points to provide power for fuel pumps, airfield lighting, and hangar evacuation during weather events. This grant was approved based on your representation of local funding availability and your ability to proceed promptly with the project.

Please execute the enclosed grant agreements and return one original to SCAC at your earliest convenience.

Aeronautics Commission

Delphin A. Gantt, Jr.

CHAIRMAN

Anne Esposito
DISTRICT 1

David Anderson
DISTRICT 2

Skeets Cooper DISTRICT 3

Lara Kaufmann DISTRICT 4

Charles "Doug" Barnes
DISTRICT 5

Marco Cavazzoni
DISTRICT 6

Christopher Bethea
DISTRICT 7

This project qualifies for state and local government funds. Project costs and funding are as follows:

 State Grant
 \$ 21,171

 Local Government
 \$ 14,114

 Total Project Cost
 \$ 35,285

We are pleased to provide this funding. If we can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

James D. Stephens

Executive Director

JDS/edt

Enclosures: Grant

cc:

Governor Henry McMaster
Chairman Delphin A. Gantt, Jr.
Commissioner Anne Esposito
Senator Stephen George E. Campsen, III

Schator Stephen George L. Can

Senator Tom Davis

Senator Margie Bright Matthews

Representative Jeffrey A. Bradley Representative Shannon S. Erickson Representative Will G. Herbkersman Representative Wm. Weston J. Newton Representative Michael F. Rivers, Sr. Representative Shedron D. Williams

GRANT AGREEMENT Part 1 - OFFER

Date of Offer: May 20, 2021 Project No.: 21-010

TO: Beaufort Executive Airport

(referred to as the "Sponsor")

FROM: The State of South Carolina (acting through the South Carolina Aeronautics Commission, herein referred to as "SCAC").

WHEREAS, The Sponsor has submitted to SCAC a Project Application dated **April 16, 2021** a grant of State Funds for a project for development of the **Beaufort Executive Airport** together with plans and specifications for such a project, as approved by SCAC, is hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof:

and

WHEREAS, SCAC has approved a project for development of the Airport ("herein called the "Project") consisting of the following described improvements and/or tasks:

Install emergency generator and three connections points.

All as more particularly described in the Airport Layout Plan and/or plans, and specifications incorporated in the said Project Application:

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to and for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of this grant and in consideration of (a) the Sponsor's adoption and ratification of the acceptance of this Offer and Agreement, as hereinafter provided, and (b) the benefits to accrue to the State of South Carolina and the public from the accomplishment of the project and the operation and maintenance of the Airport, as herein provided.

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ACTING THROUGH SCAC, HEREBY OFFERS AND AGREES to pay, as South Carolina's matching share of the allowable cost incurred in accomplishing the project as per the following schedule:

Funding Source	Amount		
State	\$21,	171	
Sponsor	\$14,	114	
Federal	\$	0	
Other	\$	0	

for a total cost of \$35, 285 subject to the following:

- 1. The maximum obligation of the State of South Carolina payable under this Offer and Agreement shall not exceed \$21,171 which all parties to this Agreement understand may be subject to the prior and continuing approval of the State Fiscal Accountability Authority and the General Assembly and its component review committees.
- 2. SCAC reserves the right to amend or withdraw this Offer at any time prior to its binding acceptance by the Sponsor.
- 3. This Offer shall expire and the State of South Carolina shall not be obligated to pay any of the allowable costs of the Project unless this Offer has been accepted by the Sponsor within 60 days from the above Date of Offer or such longer time as may be prescribed by SCAC in writing.
- 4. The funds allocated by this Agreement shall be held in escrow for a period of one (1) year after the Date of Offer. If progress on the described project has not begun at that time, the funds will revert to SCAC for reallocation to other worthwhile projects.

The Sponsor's acceptance of this Offer and ratification and adoption of the Project Application shall be evidenced by execution of Part II of this Agreement by the Sponsor. The respective obligations under this Grant Agreement shall become effective upon the Sponsor's acceptance of the Offer and shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed under the project but in any event not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date of said acceptance.

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA SOUTH CAROLINA AERONAUTICS COMMISSION

(Signature By	Executive Director
	7 2 2021 Date
	Sponsor's Signature
	Date

PART II - SPONSOR ASSURANCES

In order to furnish SCAC with the Sponsor's assurances required by the applicable statutes, regulations, policies, and proposed grant agreement, the Sponsor hereby covenants, and agrees with SCAC as follows:

- 1. Covenants shall become effective upon acceptance by the Sponsor of State Aid for the Project or any portion thereof, through SCAC, and shall constitute a part of the Grant Agreement thus formed. These covenants shall remain in full force and effect throughout the useful life of the facilities developed under the Project but in any event not to exceed twenty (20) years from the date of acceptance of State Aid for the Project. In the event that the Airport and the facilities covered by the Project are not maintained as such for public use for the full twenty (20) years, the Sponsor agrees upon demand to promptly reimburse SCAC the amount of the grant.
- 2. In the event that the grant is conditioned upon a repayment schedule of any or all of the awarded funds, notwithstanding the other obligations herein that may require repayment in the event of default or non-compliance with these grant assurances, the Sponsor agrees to be bound by such additional grant assurances as may be required by SCAC as incorporated hereto and set forth in a separate schedule to these assurances.

3. Sponsor shall:

- a. begin accomplishment of the Project within a reasonable time after acceptance of this Offer, but no later than one (1) year from award of this Offer;
- carryout and complete the project in accordance with the terms of this agreement, applicable policies and procedures required by SCAC, and applicable statutes, regulations and fiscal policies of the State of South Carolina, and any applicable local ordinances;
- c. carryout and complete the project in accordance with the plans and specifications incorporated herein, including any revisions or modifications approved in writing by SCAC. Sponsor further agrees to copy SCAC as to all construction progress reports, payment applications, and completion documents and related correspondence;
- d. submit all planning and construction documents to SCAC for review and approval;
- e. notify SCAC, in writing, in a timely manner, and with appropriate support documentation and/or electronic files, of any significant changes to the airport so that same may be incorporated into SCAC's records and/or databases, including the South Carolina Airport System Plan. Significant changes include, but are not limited to:
 - new, upgraded, deactivated, or repurposed airfield pavement and lighting;
 - land acquisition or releases, including easements:
 - major obstruction clearing;
 - new, upgraded, or downgraded instrument procedures; and
 - new, revised, or expanded airport-related zoning ordinances.
- 4. Sponsor agrees that it will safely and efficiently operate the Airport for the use and benefit of the public on fair and reasonable terms without discrimination.

- 5. Sponsor will suitably operate and maintain the Airport and all facilities thereon or connected therewith which are necessary for airport purposes, and will not permit any activity which could interfere with its use for aeronautical purposes other than temporary periods of snow, flood, or other climatic conditions which could interfere detrimentally with such operation and maintenance. Essential facilities, including airfield lighting systems, when installed, will be operated in such manner as to assure their availability to all users of the Airport.
- 6. Sponsor will not enter into any transactions which could operate to deprive it of any of the rights and powers necessary to perform any or all of the covenants made herein, unless by such transaction the obligation to perform all such covenants is assumed by another public agency eligible under the applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations and policies to assume such obligations. If an arrangement is made for management or operation of the Airport by any agency or person other than the Sponsor, the Sponsor will reserve sufficient powers and authority to insure that the Airport will be operated and maintained in accordance with the applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations, policies and covenants of this agreement.
- 7. Any misrepresentations or omission of a material fact by the Sponsor concerning the Project or the Sponsor's authority or ability to carry out the obligations assumed by the Sponsor in accepting this Offer shall terminate the obligation of the State of South Carolina and it is understood and agreed by the Sponsor in accepting this Offer that if a material fact has been misrepresented or omitted by the Sponsor, SCAC on behalf of the State of South Carolina, may demand and recover from Sponsor all grant payments made, plus interest at the legal rate prevailing at date of demand.
- 8. Sponsor shall maintain insurance in force at all times covering property damage on the project to cover any and all losses. The amount of the coverage, per claim, shall, at a minimum, be equal to the total cost of the project.
- 9. Sponsor shall maintain clear, safe, and economically viable approaches to the airport in compliance with appropriate criteria set forth in one or more of the following airspace standards:
 - FAR Part 77 Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace, as amended;
 - Advisory Circular 150/5300-13A, Airport Design, or successor guidance; or other guidelines approved in writing or amended by SCAC.
 - Failure on the part of the Sponsor to take appropriate action to remove any and all obstructions in the approaches, in a manner that ensures safety and protects public investment in the airport, may result in withholding of any payment of the funds established by this agreement for the herein described project until such time as the necessary actions are taken.
- 10. Sponsor shall enact a zoning ordinance on all land surrounding the airport under its jurisdiction so as to conform, at a minimum, to the pertinent regulations and/or criteria of:
 - FAR Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace, as amended;
 - Advisory Circular 150/5300-13A, Airport Design, or successor guidance;
 - Advisory Circular 150/5190-4A, A Model Zoning Ordinance to Limit Height of Objects Around Airports, or successor guidance; and

• FAR Part 150, Airport Noise Compatibility Planning, as amended.

The criteria in the ordinances shall limit the following items:

- the height of objects around airports,
- communication, visibility, and bird strike hazards,
- incompatible land uses in the Runway Protection Zone (RPZ); and
- if applicable, incompatible land uses within the 65 DNL noise contour.

Airport-related zoning ordinances shall have at least one attached scaled map that clearly illustrates the relevant airspace and land use zones. Sponsors shall submit to SCAC the current zoning ordinance(s) and attached map(s) related to the airport, that have been approved by the local government(s) having jurisdiction on lands surrounding the airport, including pertinent signatures, seals, and dates of ordinances readings.

The Sponsor further agrees to develop procedures necessary to comply with Section 55-13-5 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended regarding land use in the vicinity of the Sponsor's airports.

- 11. Sponsor will maintain a current Airport Layout Plan, having the current approval of SCAC, showing existing and future landing areas and associated taxiways, pertinent approach surface dimensions and slopes, Runway Protection Zones, and building areas. The Sponsor will conform to the current Airport Layout Plan in any future improvements or changes at the Airport. The Sponsor shall furnish SCAC a current Airport Layout Plan and property plats in all of the following formats:
 - paper of at least 24 inch by 36-inch size sheet(s);
 - Portable Document Format (PDF) electronic file(s).
 - GIS shapefile(s) or geodatabase in South Carolina State Plane coordinates; or CAD DWG file(s) in South Carolina State Plane coordinates (International feet).

Sponsor shall be responsible for furnishing to SCAC such documents, data, and/or electronic files as is necessary to keep the Airport Layout Plan, State Airport System Plan, and related SCAC records and databases up to date.

- 12. Sponsor will furnish a set of "As Built Plans" or "Record Drawings" for the current project to SCAC within ninety (90) days after completion of this project. The sponsor shall submit these documents, at a minimum, in both paper and PDF electronic file formats
- 13. Sponsor shall provide a qualified Resident Inspector who will be responsible for the approval of all materials and workmanship and will maintain a daily project diary, submit weekly progress reports to SCAC, and maintain and provide documentation and certification to SCAC that the work and materials comply with the plans and specifications. The requirement for a Resident Inspector does not apply to projects under the direct control and supervision of an independent registered professional engineer, architect, or construction manager hired by the Sponsor, in which event the Sponsor agrees to contractually obligate the independent professional engineer, architect, or construction manager to assume responsibilities, including, but not limited to, quality control as to materials and workmanship, and certification to SCAC that work and materials comply with plans and specifications.

- 14. Affidavit of Non-Collusion - South Carolina Code Section 39-3-10, et seq., 39-5-10, et seq., and Federal Law 15 U. S. Code, Section 1) are designed to ensure that any bids received by Sponsor under this grant shall be competitive and free of collusion. As a condition precedent to the award of any contract for this project there must be filed a sworn statement executed by or on behalf of any person, firm, association, or corporation submitting a bid on any such contract to be awarded; said sworn statement shall certify that such a person, firm, association, or corporation submitting a bid on any such contract to be awarded; has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into an agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free completive bidding in connection with such contract. This sworn statement shall be in the form of an affidavit executed and sworn to be the bidder before a person who is authorized by the laws of the state to administer oaths. The original of such sworn statement shall also include a provision to the effect that all legal formalities required for the proper execution of affidavits, it shall not be a defense to such charge of perjury that said formalities required for the proper execution of affidavits pursuant to state law have been complied with. Thereafter, in any prosecution against any person, firm, association, or corporation for perjury committed in the submission of said affidavits, it shall not be a defense to such charge of perjury that said formalities were not in fact complied with. The Sponsor. as part of this grant, agrees to require an affidavit of non-collusion of the prospective bidder in the form attached thereto as Exhibit A.
- 15. Sponsor covenants and agrees to disburse funds derived from SCAC solely in aid of the Project on the terms and conditions stated in this agreement. The Sponsor will obtain an audit to comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984, Public Law 98-502 and the implementing guidelines set forth in Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128 for any fiscal year in which any of the Project Funds are expended. The Sponsor will forward to SCAC a copy of the resulting audit reports along with a plan for corrective action for any findings or questioned costs related to the Project; within thirty (30) days after the audit report is issued.
- 16. Sponsor agrees that significant activities to accomplish the project shall commence within one (1) year from the date of grant shall be revoked and the funds re-allocated.
- 17. Sponsor agrees Project work and payment request shall be completed within four (4) years of the execution of the Grant Agreement.
- 18. Sponsor shall request final reimbursement within ninety (90) calendar days after final project acceptance.
- 19. Sponsor agrees and covenants that all work performed under this grant will be conducted and completed in compliance with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations that are applicable to any and all phases of the Project.
- 20. Sponsor agrees that these covenants and grant applications shall be binding on itself, successors and assignees, and further covenants that it has the legal authority to enter into this agreement.

PART III - ACCEPTANCE

				adopt all statements,	
Application a	and incorporated mat	nts, sponsor assurances terials referred to in nd by such acceptance	the foregoing Of	fer and does hereby	
thereof.			•		
	Executed this	day of	,	2021	
	Excepted das	duy 01		2021	
	(Name of Sponsor)				
	. 10. 1 .	(Signature By)			
	~	(Title)			
(Seal)					
Attest		_			
Title		_			
CERTIFICAT	E OF SPONSOR'S A	TTORNEY			
Ι,		, acting as attorney fo	r		
		ined the foregoing Gra			
authorized and	that the execution the	elating thereto, and find the ereof is in all respects du	ne Acceptance by S	ponsor has been duly accordance with the	
		and further that, in my o			
		Sponsor in accordance			
Dated this		_ day of	, 2021		
Signature By_					
Title					

EXHIBIT A

AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF	_
Personally, appeared before being first duly sworn says that he	s a member of the firm of
into any agreement, participated in	iation, or corporation has not, either directly or indirectly, entered any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free with the submission of a bid on the above-named project.
Further,	swears and affirms that all
his state has been complied with an	oper execution of affidavits pursuant to the laws of d further agrees, on behalf of himself, his firm, my subsequent prosecution for perjury of him, his
•	shall not be a defense to such charge of perjury that
	Legal Signature
SWORN to me before this	day of, 2021
Signature By	
Notary Public for	



Altitude Academy
P.O. Box 4798
Beaufort, SC 29901
03/22/2022

Good evening Mr. Dolin,

Altitude Academy is a non-profit 501©(3) charitable organization dedicated to educating and exposing youth to all aspects and opportunities of careers in aerospace from Maintenance, Piloting, Engineering, Manufacturing, Military, Administration, and more.

Altitude Academy began its mission encouraging youth on March 29, 2021. Since we've provided educational sessions, hands-on shop projects, and field experiences for youth, meeting at least two times per month. We currently have 30+ children enrolled in our program. We hosted fundraising events locally at various events to assist in expenses that will give youth the whole experience that Aerospace offers.

Our board member consists of Harriston J. Holmes, Jr., as Founder/ Chair. Harriston Holmes, Jr. is a native of Beaufort County and a graduate of Beaufort High School. He has an A&P and Inspection Authorization, with over 11 years of experience in Aviation with assignments from Civilian/ Military, Commercial, Corporate, to General Aviation. He's currently working as an Inspector with Don B Aerospace of the Lady's Island Executive airport and as an Aircraft Maintenance Supervisor at The Savannah/ Hilton Head Int'l Airport with a regional partner of American Airlines. Dietra Holmes, Ph.D., is Vice-Chair on the board. Dietra Holmes has been working in Education for 15+ years as a School Teacher and District Coordinator. Betty Holmes is the Dean of Student Affairs. Mrs. Betty Holmes has retired from the Beaufort County School District as an Educator serving more than 30 years. Jason Smalls is the Executive Director of the program. Jason Smalls is a retired Sergeant- Major of the U.S. Army who now works as an Engineer for Beaufort/ Jasper Water Authority. James Smalls, Jr. is the Treasurer of the board. James Smalls, Jr., is the Chief Executive Officer of Nationwide Logistics and Good Credits Pros. Nyaisha Griffin is the Director of Wellness and Nutrition on the board. Ms. Griffin has been

serving in the health field for 5+ years. She continues her matriculation with Trident Technical College in Charleston, SC, where she is currently awaiting Clinicals to receive her certification. Keonda Grant Taylor is the Financial Advisor. Mrs. Taylor has been researching grants and various funding opportunities to support the organization in this endeavor.

Altitude Academy's sole purpose is to provide an avenue, connecting the dots between youth and their dreams. We are currently in need of a building as our central location to host class sessions. We also are asking for support to get equipment such as simulators, engineering kits, and storage. We are also in need of transportation that will support field experiences. Aerospace can be extremely costly, but its reward is more significant to the passionate pursuant. We aim to provide opportunities to the many brilliant minds of the Lowcountry other than sports and entertainment. With the help of all Communities, we will prepare our youth for a better future, achieving great things advancing aerospace technology. In advance, Team Altitude Academy would like to thank every supporter for sharing this dream for Youth.

Gratefully,

Harriston J. Holmes, Jr.

And Team Altitude Academy

Website: http://Altitudeacademy727.com

Email: Altitudeacademy727@gmail.com

Facebook: Altitude Academy SC Instagram: @AltitudeAcademy727